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The SBIR/STTR Alerting Service is a free service that provides bi-weekly notification of SBIR and STTR solicitation announcements, news and information, and Internet resources relevant to the SBIR/STTR programs.  This service is provided by the Economic Development Office of Pacific Northwest National Laboratory (PNNL).

Back issues of the SBIR Alert are available on the World Wide Web at www.pnl.gov/edo/sbir.stm.  Subscription and keyword search instructions appear at the end of this newsletter.   

NEWS IN THIS ISSUE

--  NASA SBIR/STTR 2001 Phase I Award Announcement

--  NIH SBIR/STTR Request for Application 

--  DoD SBIR Solicitation 02.1 Advance Notice

--  SBIR Proposal Writing Tip 
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             SBIR/STTR NEWS AND INFORMATION

--  NASA SBIR/STTR 2001 Phase I Award Announcement

The selection announcement for SBIR/STTR 2001 Phase I proposals is scheduled for September 11, 2001 at noon (EDT). Please check the homepage at that time: http://sbir.nasa.gov/
--  DOE SBIR/STTR 2002 Phase I Solicitation Early Release

Just a heads-up that the Department of Energy (DOE) is expecting to release the FY 2002 SBIR/STTR Phase I solicitation on October 15 which is earlier than the late November period which it has been the last couple of years.  Check the DOE SBIR/STTR web site http://sbir.er.doe.gov/sbir/ around that time if you are interested.

--  NIH SBIR/STTR Request for Application 

The National Institutes of Health (NIH) recently released an Request for Application (RFA) that may be of interest to some.  A portion of the RFA appears below.  The entire announcement is posted at http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/rfa-files/RFA-ES-02-001.html.  The NIH SBIR web site (http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/sbir.htm) also has a list of NIH SBIR/STTR-Relevant Program Announcements (PAs) and RFAs that are taken from the NIH Guide Electronic Repository of Special Announcements for Small Business Research Opportunities (http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/index.html) 

INNOVATIVE TECHNOLOGIES FOR HAZARDOUS WASTE SITE REMEDIATION AND MONITORING (SBIR/STTR)

Release Date:  August 29, 2001

RFA:  RFA-ES-02-001

National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences

 (http://www.niehs.nih.gov)

Letter of Intent Receipt Date:  October 15, 2001

Application Receipt Date:       November 20, 2001

PURPOSE

……..This initiative is designed to foster the commercialization of technologies, products and devices developed by the Superfund Basic Research Program (SBRP) and others.  An intent of this solicitation is to develop products emanating from the science supported by the SBRP that is relevant to the clean-up and monitoring of hazardous substances.  The Small Business Innovative Research /Small Business Technology Transfer Research (SBIR/STTR) program is ideally suited to support these demonstration commercialization opportunities.  This RFA provides a flexible system within the SBIR/STTR program that allows for the development of products and devices for remediation and monitoring of hazardous waste sites………

--  DoD SBIR Solicitation 02.1 Advance Notice

The Department of Defense (DoD) SBIR solicitation 02.1 won’t be publicly released on the DoD SBIR web site until October 1, but some initial information concerning the solicitation was released in an announcement that appeared in the Commerce Business Daily last month, and is posted below for your convenience.

SUBJECT: DOD SMALL BUSINESS INNOVATION RESEARCH PROGRAM (SBIR) DESC: "DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE (DOD) SMALL BUSINESS INNOVATION RESEARCH (SBIR) PROGRAM.

Small high-technology firms are encouraged to submit proposals to DoD for R&D projects with both military and commercial applications in response to SBIR solicitation 02.1, which will be publicly released on the DoD SBIR Web Site (http://www.acq.osd.mil/sadbu/sbir) on October 1, 2001. DoD will begin accepting proposals in response to this solicitation on December 3, 2001. Eight DoD components will participate in the 02.1 solicitation the Departments of the Navy and Air Force, the Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency (DARPA), the Ballistic Missile Defense Organization (BMDO), the Defense Threat Reduction Agency (DTRA), the National Imagery and Mapping Agency (NIMA), the Chemical Biological Defense Program (CBD) and the U.S. Special Operations Command (SOCOM). 

The solicitation will list all the R&D topics under which DoD is seeking proposals, and will also contain detailed information on the parameters of the SBIR program and how to submit a proposal. Small firms apply first for a six-month phase I award of $60,000 to $100,000 to test the scientific, technical, and commercial merit of a particular concept. Proposals are limited to 25 pages in length. If phase I proves successful, the firm may be invited to apply for a two-year phase II award of $500,000 to $750,000 to further develop the concept, usually to the prototype stage. 

On October 1, 2001, DoD will also publicly release on the DoD SBIR Web Site (http://www.acq.osd.mil/sadbu/sbir) the names of the SBIR solicitation topic authors and their phone numbers. This will give small companies an opportunity to ask technical questions about specific solicitation topics by telephone before they submit a proposal. Once DoD begins accepting proposals on December 3, 2001 such telephone questions will no longer be accepted. 

Phase I proposals are to be submitted to the addressees designated in the solicitation, and must arrive no later than 3:00 P.M. local time, at the addressee's organization, on January 16, 2002. A hard copy of the solicitation will be mailed automatically to all firms registered with the SBIR Help Desk as of September 28, 2001. To register, call the SBIR Help Desk at 866-216-4095. Hard copies and/or electronic copies of the solicitation will also be available from the SBIR Help Desk (866-216-4095) after December 3, 2001. 

Small firms participating in the SBIR program retain patent rights and technical data rights, in accord with Public Law 97-219, Public Law 102-564, and Public Law 106-554. Participation in the DoD SBIR Program is restricted to small business firms organized for profit with 500 or fewer employees, including all affiliated firms." 

LINKURL: http://www.acq.osd.mil/sadbu/sbir
LINKDESC: SBIR SOLICITATION 02.1

EMAILADD: martija@hqda.army.mil
EMAILDESC: Call (866) 216-4095 for additional info or e-mail

  above for COntracting Office 

--  SBIR Proposal Writing Tip

The following proposal writing tip was provided by Gail & Jim Greenwood.  Past SBIR proposal writing articles written by the Greenwoods are available on the Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc. (GCGI) web site at http://home.att.net/~g-jgreenwood.

SBIR Proposal Writing Basics:  Including Universities and Federal Labs

Copyright © 2001 by Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc.

We recently saw something from the SBIR/STTR Program Coordinator at the Department of Energy that said the “chances of winning an award was greater for those grant applications in which there was substantial collaboration between a small business and a research institution.”  That would tend to make you think it is a good idea to include a university or federal lab in your SBIR/STTR proposal. With STTR, it is mandatory to include a non profit research institution in your proposal.  If you do not, your proposal will be rejected without a technical review. 

But in a more general sense, when is it a good idea to include a university or federal lab in your project?

One reason for including them is when you need to bolster the academic credentials of your team.  Perhaps you are a creative, intelligent individual but do not have the academic degrees that might be expected of the principal investigator.  By adding someone from a university or federal lab who has the appropriate degrees and has published papers in relevant technical areas, you gain credibility for your team.

Another reason is when you are transferring technology out of the university or federal lab.  Often times you want to tap into the knowledge of the developers of the technology rather than just get the technology itself.

A third reason is to access unique capabilities and/or facilities at the university or federal lab.  Most of us do not have nuclear reactors readily available to us; if you need one for your project, you probably will want to include in your proposal a federal lab that has one, as well as the cost of using that facility.

Finally, include a federal laboratory or university in your project to fill gaps in your technical capabilities.  If the project involves both biology and chemistry and your strength is in chemistry, then find a lab or university that can bring the biology capabilities to the table.

As you can see, there are a number of instances in which it makes sense to include a university or federal lab in your SBIR/STTR proposal.  But we want to offer some cautions and words of advice about doing so:

1.  Avoid window dressing.  This is a term used to describe a proposal in which a university or federal lab is included, but they have no significant role in the project.

2.  Look out for inter-agency biases.  It is unfortunate, but some agencies do not look favorably on proposals that include federal laboratories from other agencies.  This is not always the case, but consider yourself forewarned.

3.  Get the agreement in writing.  Even if your old college buddy is the professor you want to tap at the university, you want a solid agreement between your company and the institution that carefully spells out the relationship.  We’ve been involved in a couple of instances where a university was contracted to do some work, they failed to complete it, and then tried to walk away from their obligations.  Also, you want to ensure that intellectual property rights are addressed, and you should get them to agree to comply with all the federal regs that you must follow in an SBIR/STTR project.

4.  Don’t use their lawyer.  Some small firms try to save money by just letting the university’s or federal lab’s lawyer do all the legal work.  That’s false economy, because that lawyer is hired to protect the institution’s interest, not yours.

5.  Start the process early.  Don’t wait until the week before the proposal due date to contact the university or lab about participating in your project.  Institutions need time to put such arrangements in place.

6.  Work with experienced institutions.  It’s easier to involve in your proposal a university or federal lab that has been a subcontractor on previous SBIR or STTR projects.

7.  Clearly state their role.  In the negotiations, agreement, and proposal, the role of the university or federal lab needs to be clear and justified.

8.  Don’t let them do all the technical work.  We see an occasional proposal where the university/federal lab is going to do all the R&D, and the small company is there to write reports and work on commercialization.  That isn’t acceptable—the small firm must be a key participant in the R&D.  That’s one reason why the small firm has to perform at least 67% of the Phase I and 50% of the Phase II in a SBIR project .

9.  Don’t let them write the proposal.  We can usually tell when the university was asked to write the SBIR/STTR proposal for the small firm because it talks in great depth about the institution and says very little about the company.  Again, you must demonstrate that the small company has a key role in the R&D, and is qualified to do so.

10.  Clarify what hat is being worn.  It’s not always clear whether a faculty member is participating in an SBIR/STTR as an individual consultant or in their official capacity at the university.  There is a major difference between the two: for example, in an STTR it must be the university that is participating, not just the professor wearing his or her consultant hat.  Also, if the professor is participating as a consultant independent of their university, then they cannot pledge key university resources like laboratories, graduate students, etc.

Also, if you are a faculty member or federal laboratory employee who has a small business that is applying for an SBIR or STTR, you may run into a conflict of interest issue with the agency if you try to make your university/federal lab department a subcontractor on the project.  Most agencies frown on such “insider” arrangements.

In conclusion, universities and federal labs can sometimes improve your chances of success in the SBIR/STTR programs.  However, it is not true that you can’t win without them (except, of course, that a non-profit institution must be included in the STTR proposal).  Include them when it makes sense to do so, and follow the cautions and suggestions listed above to make it a smoother relationship should your project get awarded.

Gail and Jim Greenwood may be reached at the following address:

Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc.

1150 Junonia

Sanibel, FL  33957

941-395-9446 (voice & fax)

mailto:g-jgreenwood@att.net  (email)

If you have tips that you would like to share, we would be happy to include them in future announcements.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

              CONFERENCES AND WORKSHOPS

NATIONAL

National SBIR Fall Conference, Rapid City, SD, October 23 - 26, 2001.  The National Science Foundation, in association with the Dept. of Defense and the Small Business Admin., and all 10 SBIR agencies is sponsoring this fall National SBIR Conference.  Program Managers and representatives from all participating agencies will provide insight into how to work with their respective agencies and answer your own special questions during the one-on-one opportunities.  An additional focus of this conference will include commercialization and information pertaining to EPSCoR states and rural areas.  Complete conference and registration information for the conference is located at http://www.SBIRworld.com.  Contact: Sharon DelaBarre at sharon@zyn.com or Phone: 360-683-5742.

REGIONAL

* Phase II Proposal Preparation Workshop, Charlottesville, Virginia, September 11-12, 2001.  This workshop is designed primarily for Phase I winners who want to learn more about the second phase of the SBIR/STTR programs.  Presenters will show how Phase II differs from Phase I, how the Phase II programs vary tremendously among the agencies, and how to prepare the Phase II proposal.  The workshop is being presented as part of the Virginia 7th Annual Small Business Innovation Research & Development conference.  For more information, contact seilertson@dit.state.va.us, or check the website www.sctech.state.va.us/ost/events.htm. 

* How SBDCs Can Help SBIR Competitors, ASBDC National Conference, Dallas, Texas, September 13, 2001. This session will outline how Small Business Development Centers and similar organizations can provide valuable assistance to companies that are writing SBIR/STTR proposals, or that have SBIR/STTR awards and need help maximizing the impact of those awards. For conference information, check out www.asbdc-us.org. 

* Phase I Proposal Preparation and Cost Proposal Preparation Workshops, Grand Forks, North Dakota, September 26-27, 2001. The first day will include a comprehensive overview of SBIR and STTR (and recent changes in both programs), and a detailed discussion of a recommended four-step process for developing a competitive Phase I proposal. The second day will be devoted to cost proposals and government accounting. For more information or to enroll, contact ryan_meyer@und.nodak.edu. 

* Phase I Proposal Development & Cost Proposal Prep Workshops, Stillwater, Oklahoma, October 10-12, 2001.  This workshop will include overview information on SBIR/STTR, advice on how to approach a Phase I proposal, and a discussion of cost proposals and government accounting.  Contact dluton@ocast.state.ok.us.

2001 Ohio SBIR Conference, Dublin, Ohio, October 11-12, 2001.  This statewide conference, presented by the Ohio's SBIR Program of the Ohio Department of Development, the Air Force SBIR Program, and the NASA Glenn Research Center, is designed for both the beginning and experienced SBIR competitor. Federal SBIR program managers will provide insight into each agency’s critical technology areas and funding levels, as well as the requirements for submitting proposals. You will learn about SBIR successes, technology commercialization, partnering with universities and federal labs, selling to the government and more.  Contact: Dennis Gaddis at dgaddis@odod.state.oh.us, or Phone: 800-848-1300 x63887.

* Common Problems with Phase I SBIR/STTR Proposals, and How to Avoid Them, Richlands, Virginia, October 13, 2001. This is the last session in a four-week course of SBIR proposal writing sponsored by the Center for Innovative Technology/UVA/College at Wise.  For more information on the course, contact tnornhold@cit.org.  

* National SBIR Fall Conference, Rapid City, SD, October 23 - 26, 2001.  The Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc. will be offering a Phase I Proposal Preparation Workshop as a pre-conference activity on the 23rd, and an abbreviated version of their Phase II Proposal Preparation Workshop on the 26th.  Contact sharon@zyn.com for more information about the program and registration. 

7th Biennial Hawaii SBIR/STTR Conference, Oahu, Maui, Hawaii, & Kau, Hawaii, October 29 - Nov 2, 2001.  Each of the federal SBIR managers will present their agency's SBIR/STTR program, and conduct one-on-one meetings with the conference attendees. The conference will also include presentations by local SBIR companies sharing their success stories. Workshop tracks on proposal writing, IP management, accessing local venture capital, and federal regulatory changes to contracting and procurement are planned.  Contact: Janice Kato at janicek@htdc.org, or by phone: 808-539-3814.

* Phase I Proposal Preparation Workshop, Albuquerque, New Mexico, November 5, 2001.  This workshop will include a discussion of the basics of the SBIR and STTR programs, cover the recent changes in both (such as the efforts to reauthorize STTR), and go through a simple four-step process for writing a competitive Phase I proposal.  For more information, contact stoller@twrol.com. 

* Phase I Proposal Preparation Workshop, Savannah, Georgia, November 9, 2001.  This workshop will cover the basics of SBIR and STTR, how the programs have changed recently, and a simple process for developing your Phase I proposal that includes strategizing, drafting the proposal, getting a presubmittal review, and getting a debriefing afterwards.  For more information, contact rteters@kennesaw.edu.  

Mid-Atlantic Business Conference for Science and Technology, Lancaster, Pennsylvania, December 4-6, 2001.  A coalition of economic development organizations, government agencies and legislators representing the Mid-Atlantic Region, will provide business opportunities and training targeted to the needs of high-tech companies.  The conference will include a discussion of the SBIR/STTR process in great detail.  For more information, or to register, exhibit or sponsor, please visit the conference web site at: www.midatlanticconference.com, or call toll-free: 888.534.4920, phone 302.656.1364, or fax 302.654.4612.   

* Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc will provide training at these workshops.  Any attendee of one of these workshops is entitled to a free critique of his or her draft SBIR or STTR proposal.  If you have questions, contact Gail or Jim Greenwood at g-jgreenwood@att.net, or visit their web site at http://home.att.net/~g-jgreenwood. 

If you are sponsoring or are aware of SBIR workshops in your area and would like to post an announcement feel free to contact us.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

             SOLICITATIONS CURRENTLY OPEN

SBIR

PHS SBIR 2002-1 (contracts), due 11/9/01  

NIH SBIR/STTR, due 12/1/01

STTR

NIH SBIR/STTR, due 12/1/01

COMING SOON

NSF SBIR/STTR (Biotechnology and Electronics), expected 10/1/01

DOD SBIR 2002.1, expected 10/1/01

DOE SBIR/STTR FY 2002, expected 10/15/01

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

                SBIR/STTR INFO ON THE INTERNET

PARTICIPATING AGENCY SBIR WEB SITES:

Department of Agriculture

     http://www.reeusda.gov/sbir 

Department of Commerce

     National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

        http://www.oar.noaa.gov/ORTA/ 

     National Institute of Standards and Technology

        http://patapsco.nist.gov/ts_sbir/ 

Department of Defense

     http://www.acq.osd.mil/sadbu/sbir or

     http://www.dodsbir.net  
       Defense Technical Information Center

          http://www.dtic.mil/dtic/sbir/ 

       Air Force

          http://www.afrl.af.mil/sbir/index.htm 

       Army

          http://www.aro.ncren.net/arowash/rt/ 

       Navy

          http://www.navysbir.brtrc.com
       Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency

          http://www.darpa.mil/sbir/ 

       Ballistic Missile Defense Organization

          http://www.winbmdo.com
       Special Operations Acquisition Center (SOAC)

          http://soal.socom.mil/smallbus04.htm
        SBIR Interactive Technical Information System (SITIS)

          http://dticam.dtic.mil/sbir/ 

Department of Education

     http://www.ed.gov/offices/OERI/SBIR/ 

Department of Energy

     http://sbir.er.doe.gov/sbir/ 

Department of Transportation

     http://www.volpe.dot.gov/sbir 

Environmental Protection Agency

     http://es.epa.gov/ncerqa/sbir/ 

National Institutes of Health

     http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/sbir.htm 

        Agency for Health Care Policy and Research 

           http://www.ahcpr.gov/ 

National Aeronautics & Space Administration

     http://sbir.nasa.gov/
National Science Foundation

     http://www.eng.nsf.gov/sbir
OTHER SITES OF INTEREST:

Small Business Administration

     http://www.sba.gov/SBIR/ 

SBA Tech-Net

     http://tech-net.sba.gov/ 

Project SBIR West

     http://www.sbir.dsu.edu/ 

Wyoming SBIR Initiative Program

      http://uwadmnweb.uwyo.edu/sbir/ 
SBIR Resource Center

     http://www.win-sbir.com/ 

ScienceWise.com

     http://content.sciencewise.com/home.htm.
National SBIR Conference Center 

     http://www.zyn.com/sbir/ 

SBIR Internet Catalog Site

     http://beagle.foresnt.com/ 

Small Business Technology Coalition 

     http://www.sbtc.org
State Science and Technology Institute 

     http://www.ssti.org
InKnowVation Online

     http://www.inknowvation.com
Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc.

    http://home.att.net/~g-jgreenwood
Fred S. Patterson

      http://www.SBIR-Support.com,

PNNL Economic Development Office

     http://www.pnl.gov/edo/business.stm
SBIR-Alerting Service

     http://lyris.pnl.gov/cgi-bin/?enter=sbir-alert
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

                 SUBSCRIPTION INSTRUCTIONS

To SUBSCRIBE to the SBIR-Alert mailing list, send an email to lyris@lyris.pnl.gov with the following in the subject line or body of your message (your name is optional):

   subscribe sbir-alert first_name last_name

   example:  subscribe sbir-alert joe smith

To UNSUBSCRIBE, send a blank email to:

leave-sbir-alert@lyris.pnl.gov 

To receive (or cancel) SBIR/STTR notices via FAX, send a request with your name, company, phone and fax number to (509) 372-4370.

You may also subscribe, unsubscribe, and view back-issues of the SBIR Alert by accessing the following Internet web site: 


http://lyris.pnl.gov/cgi-bin/?enter=sbir-alert
To access back-issues, connect to the site above, enter your email address (a password is not needed to connect), select 'connect' then 'read messages.'  A keyword search is also available if you wish to search for issues containing a particular subject or topic of interest.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

       HOW TO REACH US

If you have any comments, suggestions, or would like to submit items for the next issue please contact us:

Richard Fowler - richard.fowler@pnl.gov - (509) 372-4332

Gary Spanner - gary.spanner@pnl.gov - (509) 372-4296

